
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

July 22, 2019 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Butch Williams; Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplain And Pastor Of Care And 

Support Ministries, Vestavia Hills United Methodist Church 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance  
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Certificate Of Recognition – Vestavia Swim Association 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Approval Of Minutes – July 8, 2019 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

10. Ordinance 2856 – Conditional Use For A Home Occupation – 621 Liberty Lake Drive; 
Catherine Waters, Owner   (public hearing) 

11. Ordinance Number 2857 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2400 – 2424 Magnolia Cove 
Road; Lots 1-13, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, ET AL, owners   (public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2858 – Rezoning – 2400 – 2424 Magnolia Cove Road; Lots 1-13, 
Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, ET AL   (public hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 5166 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook and Celine 
Russell, Owners   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2859 – Annexation – Overnight – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook and Celine 
Russell, Owners   (public hearing) 

New Business 

15. Resolution Number 5172 - Alcohol License – Gem Brand LLC d/b/a Taco Tech; 2409 
Acton Road, Suite 127 For 020 – Restaurant Retail Liquor License; Gerald Elliot Mosser, 
Executive       (public hearing)   

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

16. Resolution Number 5174 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Wald Park Improvements   
(public hearing)   



First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Resolution Number 5173 – A Resolution Approving A Change Order For The Green 
Valley Sidewalk Construction In The Amount Of $32,560  (public hearing) 

18. Resolution Number 5167 – Annexation – 90-Day – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 40, 
Mountain Branch Subdivision; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, LLC, Owner(s)  (public 

hearing) 
19. Ordinance Number 2860 – Annexation – Overnight – 929 Mountain Branch Circle; Lot 

40, Mountain Branch Subdivision; Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings, LLC, Owner(s)   
(public hearing) 

20. Resolution Number 5168 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Paul and Gloria 
Russell, Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

21. Ordinance Number 2861 – Annexation – Overnight – 2645 Alta Glen Drive; Paul and 
Gloria Russell, Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

22. Resolution Number 5169 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena 
Valley Country Club; Mark and Jennifer Weldon, Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2862 – Annexation – Overnight – 2606 Acton Road; Lot 5, Altadena 
Valley Country Club; Mark and Jennifer Weldon, Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

24. Resolution Number 5170 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2790 Acton Place; Hugh Humphrey, 
Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 2863 – Annexation – Overnight – 2790 Acton Place; Hugh Humphrey, 
Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

26. Resolution Number 5171 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2729 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Resurvey 
of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 and 48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; William Ennis, Owner(s)   
(public hearing) 

27. Ordinance Number 2864 – Annexation – Overnight – 2729 Kenvil Circle; Lot 36, Resurvey 
of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 and 48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; William Ennis, Owner(s)   
(public hearing) 

28. Citizen Comments      
29. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
July 8, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JULY 8, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the Acting City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Paul Head, Councilor 

      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Johnny Evans, Police Captain 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Keith Blanton, Building Official 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
 

Don Richards, Vestavia Hills Chaplain led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 
None. 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 None. 

 
  



City Council Minutes 
July 8, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 
COUNCILOR REPORTS 

 
 Mr. Pierce recognized the Chamber on the I Love America Day events.  He stated that 

despite rain and relocating to the High School the event was a lot of fun.  
 Mr. Pierce thanked the staff at the Vestavia Hills Bill F. Towers Fire Station No. 1.  He 

stated that he was recently referred to them and they checked him out and sent him to the 
hospital for high blood pressure problems.  He commended them on their professionalism.  

 The Mayor stated that they recently have a person come and request help with the Freedom 
from Addiction Coalition.  He stated that he is proud of the VHPD for helping with that 
individual. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission will meet in regular session 
at 6 PM on Thursday.  

 Mr. Head stated that the Parks and Recreation Meeting will be held on Tuesday beginning 
at 7:30 AM in the Executive Conference Room here at City Hall. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner, Finance Director, presented the financial reports for month ending May 2019.  
He read and explained the balances.     
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  approval of minutes 
of the June 17, 2019 (Special Meeting); June 17, 2019 (Work Session) and June 24, 2019 (Regular 
Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the June 17, 2019 (Special 

Meeting); and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by Mr. 
Pierce.   Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – abstain   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the June 17, 2019 (Work 

Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by Mr. 
Pierce.   Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – abstain   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the June 24, 2019 (Regular 

Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. 
Head.   Roll call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
July 8, 2019 

Page 3 
 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on July 22, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance 2856 – Conditional Use For A Home Occupation – 621 Liberty Lake Drive; 
Catherine Waters, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2857 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2400 – 2424 Magnolia Cove 
Road; Lots 1-13, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, ET AL, owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2858 – Rezoning – 2400 – 2424 Magnolia Cove Road; Lots 1-13, 
Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, ET AL   (public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5166 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook and Celine 
Russell, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2859 – Annexation – Overnight – 3516 Squire Lane; Brook and Celine 
Russell, Owners   (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 At 7:15 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:11 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry  
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2856 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2856 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A HOME OCCUPATION  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City of 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, Catherine Waters is “a resident” of the property located at 621 Liberty 

Lake Drive, currently zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PR-2 (planned unit development planned 

residential district) more particularly described as Lot 3, Liberty Park Common; and 

 WHEREAS, Catherine Waters has submitted application for Conditional Use 

Approval for a home occupation to be operated in her residence located at 621 Liberty 

Lake Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Catherine Waters has indicated in her application for Conditional Use 

Approval that she will operate an office for the sale of books of her home pursuant to the 

specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated April 1, 2019 is marked as Exhibit 

A, attached and hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2856. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Catherine Waters for a home 

occupation as described in the above-referenced application for her residence 

located at 621 Liberty Lake Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in Liberty 

Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions outlined in Article 9 of the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code outlined as follows: 

a. “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and which 



Ordinance Number 2856 
Page 2 

 

use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to the use of 

the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the character of the 

dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the neighborhood 

surrounding said dwelling; and 

b. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation; and 

c. There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; and 

d. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation; and 

e. No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned; and 

f. In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use; and 

g. Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones is 

expressly prohibited; and 

h. The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM; and 

i. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 

keeping on premises a commercial vehicle and no additional traffic shall be 

generated by said conditional use; and 

j. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 

be employed by the home occupation; and 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the said property located 

in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 



Ordinance Number 2856 
Page 3 

 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application and 

payment by Catherine Waters working subject to the rules and regulations 

outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be renewed each 

year that the home occupation is operated from the said property located in the 

Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Catherine Waters vacate the premises located at 621 Liberty 

Lake Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate this business, this 

Conditional Use Approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance Number 2856 

shall be automatically repealed. 

5. This Ordinance Number 2856 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 

2019. 

 

 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2856 
Page 4 

 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2856 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MAY 9, 2019

CASE: P-0519-23

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For Home Occupation

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 621 Liberty Lake Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Catherine Waters

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The applicant wishes to conduct a home based business 
in Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a conditional use permit is 
required for a home based business. A description of the applicants business, as well 
as an approval letter from Liberty Park and the apartment complex is attached. The 
property is zoned PR-1.

Liberty Park Master Plan: This request is consistent with the procedures of the 
Liberty Park PUD.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the following conditions: 
1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation.
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises.
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation.
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2856



2

5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation.
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle.
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation.
8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. House made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval for a home 
occupation for 621 Liberty Lake Drive with the following conditions:

1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation.
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises.
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation.
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned.
5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation.
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle.
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2856



3

8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m.

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Ms. Cobb– yes
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2856



Exhbit A - Ordinance No. 2827

P0519-2~/tcolonial Grand at LP 
621 Liberty Lake Drive 
Cond . Use for home occupation 
Catherine Waters PUD 

CITY OF VEST A VIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

P&Z Application 

Page 4 

I. INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION: 

II. 

(1) The Vestav ia H ill s Planning and Zoning Commission meets regu lar ly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Counc il Chambers at the 
Muni cipal Center. 

(2) All materia ls and info rmation re lating to a zoning/rezoning request or condi tiona l 
use approval before the P lanning and Zoning Commiss ion must be su bmitted to 
the Office of the City C lerk no later than 25 working days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. A ll information re lat ing to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the C ity C lerk no 
later than 20 days pri or to the scheduled meeting at whi ch is shall be considered. 
All information relating to F ina l Map approva ls must be submi tted to the Office 
of the C ity C lerk no late r than 15 days prior to the schedul ed meeting at wh ich it 
is to be considered . 

(3) Thi s app li cation must be fi lled out in its entirety complete w ith z ip codes. 
(4) A ll applicable fees shall accompany thi s application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 a long with app licab le 
postage per property owner to be notifi ed fo r Commiss ion meeting. Fees may 
a lso include notification fees for C ity Counc il meeting and publication fees wh ich 
w ill be billed to appli cant at a late r date. **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate p lats and maps with proper lega l descript ion sha ll accompany thi s 
appli cation. Please refer to attached checklist. 

NAME: 

ADDRESS : 

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 

PHONE NUMBER: Home c2JS o01"-' 56f3?' Office 

-o 
::0 

I 

-----------U----

~ 
NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: - ----4--- -



Exhbit A - Ordinance No. 2827

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

P0519-23//Colonial Grand at LP 
621 Liberty Lake Drive 
Cond. Use for home occupation 
Catherine Waters PUD 

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

Request that the a ove described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant 
to Section of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

Current Zoning of Property: ~ IJ /J PU 0 £Q -/ 
Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: /{)()r/:_ ~ k;ne -

(Example: From "VH R-1" to "VH 0-1 " r office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request** 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: (addr4 legal, etc.) 

Property size: _____ feet X _____ feet. Acres: 

V. INFORMATION ATTACHED: 

~===~ Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

----=====:::::::~ Application fees submitted. 

VI. I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

Representing Agent (if any)/date 



Exhbit A - Ordinance No. 2827

April 1, 2019 

City of Vestavia Hills 

Vestavia Hills City Hall 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

Dear City Council, 

P0519-23//Colonial Grand at LP 
621 Liberty Lake Drive 
Cond. Use for home occupation 
Catherine Waters PUD 

I would like to work from home as an author. I do manage my website from home and would like to be 

able to store a box of books in my house to take individual orders to the post office for delivery. I will 

not be having delivery trucks coming to my apartment for work purposes. There will be no signage. I am 

asking for permission in order to fulfill orders and pay the appropriate taxes to the city of Vestavia, 

Jefferson County, and Alabama. 

Thank you for considering this request. 

(?re~ 

Catherine Waters, PhD 



Exhbit A - Ordinance No. 2827

Catherine Waters 
621 Liberty Lake Drive 
Vestavia Hills AL 35242 

Dear Catherine, 

MAA 
A Brighter View 

27 March 2019 

We would like to confirm that we have approved your request to sell your book from your apartment 
home. Please let us know if you need any additional verification of this. 

Regards, 

Griffin Thomas 
Property Manager 
Colonial Grand at Liberty Park 
1750 Bartholdi Parkway 
Vestavia Hills I AL I 35242 
P: 205 .967.5152 I F: 205 .967.2926 
Griffin.thomas@ maac.com 
www.cglibertypark.com I www.maac.com 



Exhbit A - Ordinance No. 2827

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
City of Vestavia Hills 
Vestavia Hills City Hall 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

Dear Ms. Leavings: 

March 4, 2019 

Re: Catherine Waters 
621 Liberty Lake Drive 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35242 

We are writing in connection with the above matter. We understand Catherine Waters is in the process of applying for 
a conditional use within the PR-1 (Planned Single-Family Residential) classification of the Liberty Park PUD to allow her to 
conduct a home occupation as an Author in her residence. 

The Liberty Park Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, that are applicable to this subject property, provide for use 
of any portion of a Dwelling for personal use as an office subject to the following conditions and restrictions: 

1. There shall be no customer, client or employee traffic to, at or near the residence that is generated, directly or 
indirectly, by the home occupation; 

2. There shall be no pick ups or deliveries to the residence that are related, directly or indirectly, to the home 
occupation, including without limitation, pick ups and deliveries by overnight courier services and pick ups 
and deliveries of inventory, samples or other goods and services related, directly or indirectly, to the home 
occupation; 

3. There shall be no signage on the property related, directly or indirectly, to the home occupation; and 
4. In all respects, there shall be no means, visual or otherwise, by which a casual observer would become aware 

that the residence is being used for any purpose other than strictly residential. 

Therefore, we respectfully request that if the Planning and Zoning Commission votes to approve the conditional use 
applied for in the above referenced matter, such approval will be made subject to the above and foregoing restrictions. 

If you have questions or comments regarding this matter, or if we can assist in any other way, please call me at 
205-945-6459 . 

Very truly yours, 

LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE, LLP 

Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP 
1000 Urban Center Drive, Suite 235, Vestavia Hills, AL 35242 1205-945-6459 



Ordinance Number 2857 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2857 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 11th day of March, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2400-2424 Magnolia Cove Road 
Lots 1-13, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, ET AL, Owner(s) 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2857 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2857 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



EXHIBIT "C" 

CITY OF VEST A VIA HILLS 
Department Review of Proposed Annexation 

(To Be completed by City Staff) 

The following properties have requested to be annexed into the City. Please review this request 
and then forward your comments to the City Clerk as soon as is reasonably possible. 

C.Ov-L-
Location: Magnolia~ Subdivision 

Engineering: Date: ------ Initials: _ ____,C/J~ ~ _ 

Magnolia Cove Subdivision -- no signifi cant co ncerns noted; with anticipation of roadway remaining a 
private drive, there is no added maintenance to the City; appears to meet majority of City subdivision 
standards; there is minor concern related to limited sight distance at intersection of Old Rocky Ridge 

looking east w ill review with Jefferson County Roads and Transportation. 
I } 

I 

Board of Education: Date· I ' I r / ! Initials: 
I / r 

Comments: 

Police Department: Date: Jl/J~ (11 In itials:__,;;;o£..._~_
1 

__ _ 

Comments: r{..; Cvltc!N'J 
~~-=~~~------------------------------

Fire Department: 

Comments: 

Date: ld 1.;>81.;1018' Initials: ~ 
No Conce.orf'\.S 





Ordinance Number 2857 
Page 3 

 

 





Ordinance Number 2858 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2858 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-2 (residential 

district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

Magnolia Cove Subdivision 
Lots 1-13, Magnolia Cove Subdivision 

Chase Beard, ET AL, Owner(s) 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2858 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2858 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2858 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JUNE 13, 2019

CASE: P-0619-30

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Magnolia Cove Estates

APPLICANT/OWNER: Multiple Applicants

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The subdivision was recently annexed into the City with 
the passage of Ordinance 2842 on 4/22/19. Applicants are seeking to rezone 
Magnolia Cove Estates from JC R-2 to R-9. A compatible rezoning would be VH R-
1, however, the lots and homes within the subdivision would not meet the minimum 
requirements. The setbacks for the lots are illustrated in the recorded plat. There is 
also construction underway to construct homes on the lots that are currently empty. 
There are 13 total lots in the subdivision. All current easements will remain.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistant with 
the plan for medium density re

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning From Jefferson County R-2
To Vestavia Hills R-9 for The Property Located At Magnolia Cove Subdivision

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2858



2

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb– yes
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes– yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2858





Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2858



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2858



Resolution Number 5166 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5166 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated January 24, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of July, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

26th day of July, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 25th day of November, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5166 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5166 
Page 2 

 
3516 Squire Lane 

Brook and Celine Russell, Owner(s) 
 
More Particularly Described as follows: 
 

The part of the Southwest 1A of the Northwest 1A of Section 28, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more 
particularly described as follows: Begin at the Southeast corner of said 1A 
- 1A section and run thence Westwardly along the South line thereof for a 
distance of 413.25 feet to point of beginning of tract here described, from 
point of beginning thus obtained continue Westwardly along the South line 
of said lA - 1A section for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle to 
the right if 88 degrees 05 ½ minutes and run Northwardly for a distance of 
328.31 feet; thence turn 'an angle to the right of 91 degrees 46 minutes and 
run Eastwardly for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle to the 
right of 88 degrees 14 minutes and run Southwardly for a distance of 328.97 
feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



3516 Squire Lane



Ordinance Number 2859 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2859 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Brook and Celine Russell dated 

January 24, 2018, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
3516 Squire Lane 

Brook and Celine Russell 
 

The part of the Southwest 1A of the Northwest 1A of Section 28, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more 
particularly described as follows: Begin at the Southeast corner of said 1A 
- 1A section and run thence Westwardly along the South line thereof for a 
distance of 413.25 feet to point of beginning of tract here described, from 
point of beginning thus obtained continue Westwardly along the South line 



Ordinance Number 2859 
Page 2 

 

of said lA - 1A section for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle to 
the right if 88 degrees 05 ½ minutes and run Northwardly for a distance of 
328.31 feet; thence turn 'an angle to the right of 91 degrees 46 minutes and 
run Eastwardly for a distance of 265.20 feet; thence turn an angle to the 
right of 88 degrees 14 minutes and run Southwardly for a distance of 328.97 
feet to the point of beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2859 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



3516 Squire Lane



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5172 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR GEM BRAND LLC D/B/A TACO TECH; 
GERALD ELLIOT MOSSER, EXECUTIVES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for Gem Brand LLC d/b/a Taco Tech, located at 2409 Acton Road, Suite 

127, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the  sale of 020 - Restaurant Retail Liquor; Gerald Elliot 

Mosser, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 





Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5172 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5172 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5174 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR WALD PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
TAKE ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO SECURE SAID 
CONSTRUCTION 

 
 WHEREAS, Invitation to Bids were invited and publically read on May 29, 2019 for 

improvements to Wald Park Improvements with five bids received; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the official bid tabulation is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5174 as if written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, recommendation was made in a letter dated July 19, 2019 from TCU 

Consulting Services, W. Ken Upchurch, III, to accept the base bid submitted by Taylor Miree, a 

copy of which is marked as Exhibit B and is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 5174 as if written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best interest of the public to 

accept said bid as recommended. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The base bid submitted by Taylor Miree is hereby accepted; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions necessary in order to secure said 

construction; and 

3. This Resolution number 5174 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5174



 
 

July 19, 2019 
 
 

Mr. Jeff Downes 
City Manager 
City of Vestavia Hills 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

 
Re: Wald Park Project   

Dear Mr. Downes: 

TCU Consulting Services has reviewed the bid and concur with Williams Blackstock 
Architects. It is our recommendation that the City of Vestavia Hills proceed with contract 
award to Taylor Miree for the Base Bid that was received on July 2, 2019 for the renovation 
of Wald Park.  

 
Sincerely, 

 

 
W. Ken Upchurch, III 
Principal 

Exhibit B - Resolution No. 5174



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5173 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 1 FOR THE 
GREEN VALLEY SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION PROJECT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $32,560 

 
 WHEREAS, ON December 20, 2018, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 5112 to award a construction contract to Triple J 

Construction, LLC for construction of the Green Valley Road Sidewalk Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the City’s engineering department has identified and detailed some 

additional needed work consisting of project overruns, items not quantified in the original bid 

and/or some additional drainage work in the amount of $32,560; and 

 WHEREAS, Brian Davis, Public Services Director; has detailed said changes in a 

requested Change Order Number 1 via an Interoffice Memo dated July 18, 2019, a copy of which 

is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5173 as though 

written therein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to issue said Change Order Number 1 in an amount 

not to exceed $32,560 as detailed in the attached Exhibit A; and 

2. This Resolution Number 5173 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City of Vestavia Hills  
Public Services Department 

1973 Merryvale Road 
Vestavia Hills, AL  35216 

205-978-0166 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMO 
 
 
Date: July 18, 2019 
 
TO: Jeff Downes 
 City Manager 
 
From: Brian C. Davis 
 Public Service Director 
 
RE: Green Valley Sidewalk Construction 
 
Engineering completed a project walk-through Monday, July 15, 2019, with construction contractor, 
Triple J, to verify final quantities for project construction and determined a few items that overran 
initial estimates.  Additionally, some items that were shown in construction plans but were not 
quantified in bid documents were identified, as well as drainage work that was required to complete 
the project.    
 
Please see the breakdown below and attached changed order.  These items totaled an additional 
$32,560 in construction costs.  We are requesting approval of Change Order No. 1 to the 
construction contract to cover this amount, increasing Contract Sum from $125,095 to $157,655. 
 
Project overruns, $12,400 
Concrete curb and gutter, added 5LF 
Concrete valley gutter, added 48LF 
Additional ADA compliant ramps, added 4each 
Add / replaced concrete driveway, added 2each 
 
Items not quantified in bid documents, $10,000 
Concrete junction box, 2 each 
Drainage inlets, 1 each 
 
Additional drainage work, $10,160 
Remove 12” pipe and headwall 
Install 18” concrete pipe and headwall 
Remove asphalt and patch 
 
CC: Rebecca Leavings 
 Christopher Brady 
 Lori Beth Kearley 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5173



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5173



Resolution Number 5167 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5167 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 22, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 12th day of August, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

16th day of August, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 25th day of November, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5167 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5167 
Page 2 

 
929 Mountain Branch Circle 

Lot 40, Mountain Branch Subdivision 
Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings LLC, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



929 Mountain Branch Circle 



Ordinance Number 2860 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2860 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings 

LLC dated April 22, 2019, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
929 Mountain Branch Circle 

Lot 40, Mountain Branch Subdivision 
Honeycutt Real Estate Holdings LLC 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2860 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2860 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 12th day of August, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 5168 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5168 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated January 16, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 12th day of August, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

16th day of August, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 25th day of November, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5168 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5168 
Page 2 

 
2645 Alta Glen Drive 

Paul and Gloria Russell, Owner(s) 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 33, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particular described as 
follows: 
 
From the NE corner of said SW ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of said Section 33, 
run in a Westerly direction along the North line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 
a distance of 351.77 feet, more or less, to a point on the SE right-of-way 
line of Alta Glen Drive; thence turn an angle to the left of 63 degrees 23 
minutes and run in a Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line 
of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 75.0 feet to an existing iron pin; thence 
continue in a Southwesterly direction along the last mentioned course and 
along the SE right-of-way of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 215.5 feet to 
an existing iron pin; thence continue in a Southwesterly direction along the 
SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 217.15 feet to an 
existing #5 iron rebar being the point of beginning; thence continue in a 
Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive 
for a distance of 445.51 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence 
turn an angle to the left of 85 degrees 29 minutes 05 seconds and run 
Southeasterly direction for a distance of 350.00 feet to an existing iron rebar 
set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 degrees 23 minutes 
01 seconds and run in an Northeasterly direction for a distance of 472.88 
feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the 
left of 90 degrees 06 minutes 11 seconds and run in a Northwesterly 
direction for a distance of 350.0 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



2645 Alta Glen Drive



Ordinance Number 2861 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2861 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Paul and Gloria Russell dated 

January 16, 2019, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2645 Alta Glen Drive 

Paul and Gloria Russell 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 33, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particular described as 
follows: 
 



Ordinance Number 2861 
Page 2 

 

From the NE corner of said SW ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of said Section 33, 
run in a Westerly direction along the North line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 
a distance of 351.77 feet, more or less, to a point on the SE right-of-way 
line of Alta Glen Drive; thence turn an angle to the left of 63 degrees 23 
minutes and run in a Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line 
of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 75.0 feet to an existing iron pin; thence 
continue in a Southwesterly direction along the last mentioned course and 
along the SE right-of-way of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 215.5 feet to 
an existing iron pin; thence continue in a Southwesterly direction along the 
SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive for a distance of 217.15 feet to an 
existing #5 iron rebar being the point of beginning; thence continue in a 
Southwesterly direction along the SE right-of-way line of Alta Glen Drive 
for a distance of 445.51 feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence 
turn an angle to the left of 85 degrees 29 minutes 05 seconds and run 
Southeasterly direction for a distance of 350.00 feet to an existing iron rebar 
set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 degrees 23 minutes 
01 seconds and run in an Northeasterly direction for a distance of 472.88 
feet to an existing iron rebar set by Weygand; thence turn an angle to the 
left of 90 degrees 06 minutes 11 seconds and run in a Northwesterly 
direction for a distance of 350.0 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2861 
Page 3 

 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2861 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 12th day of August, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



2645 Alta Glen Drive



Resolution Number 5169 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5169 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated October 18, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 12th day of August, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

16th day of August, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 25th day of November, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5169 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5169 
Page 2 

 
2606 Acton Road 

Lot 5, Altadena Valley Country Club 
Mark and Jennifer Weldon, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



2606 Acton Road



 

2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



2606 Acton Road



Ordinance Number 2862 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2862 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Mark and Jennifer Weldon dated 

October 18, 2018, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2606 Acton Road 

Lot 5, Altadena Valley Country Club 
Mark and Jennifer Weldon 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2862 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2862 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 12th day of August, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



 

2606 Acton Road



Resolution Number 5170 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5170 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 19, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 12th day of August, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

16th day of November, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 25th day of November, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5170 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5170 
Page 2 

 
2790 Acton Place 

Hugh Humphrey, Owner(s) 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Commence at the SW corner of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, thence run S 90 degrees 00’00” E along 
the south line thereof for a distance of 481.18 feet; thence run N 30 degrees 
55’00” E for a distance of 81.93’; thence run N 79 degrees 25’00” E for a 
distance of 128.06’ to the point of beginning; thence run N 79 degrees 
25’00” E for a distance of 161.08’; thence run N 10 degrees 35’00” W for 
a distance of 86.00’; thence run N 71 degrees 30’45” W for a distance of 
150.14’ to a point on the southeasterly right-of-way of Acton Road.  Sid 
point being located on a curve to the right having a central angle of 05 
degrees 10’22” and a radius of 1216.77’ and a chord bearing of S 22 degrees 
34’03” W; thence run along the arc of said curve for a distance of 109.85’; 
thence run S 34 degrees 50’46” for a distance of 73.50’ to the point of 
beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



2790 Acton Place



Ordinance Number 2863 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2863 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Hugh Humphrey dated February 

19, 2019, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2790 Acton Place 
Hugh Humphrey 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Commence at the SW corner of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, thence run S 90 degrees 00’00” E along 
the south line thereof for a distance of 481.18 feet; thence run N 30 degrees 
55’00” E for a distance of 81.93’; thence run N 79 degrees 25’00” E for a 
distance of 128.06’ to the point of beginning; thence run N 79 degrees 
25’00” E for a distance of 161.08’; thence run N 10 degrees 35’00” W for 



Ordinance Number 2863 
Page 2 

 

a distance of 86.00’; thence run N 71 degrees 30’45” W for a distance of 
150.14’ to a point on the southeasterly right-of-way of Acton Road.  Sid 
point being located on a curve to the right having a central angle of 05 
degrees 10’22” and a radius of 1216.77’ and a chord bearing of S 22 degrees 
34’03” W; thence run along the arc of said curve for a distance of 109.85’; 
thence run S 34 degrees 50’46” for a distance of 73.50’ to the point of 
beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2863 
Page 3 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2863 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 12th day of August, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



2790 Acton Place



Resolution Number 5171 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5171 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated March 13, 2019, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 12th day of August, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

16th day of August, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 25th day of November, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5171 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5171 
Page 2 

 
2429 Kenvil Circle 

Lot 36, Resurvey of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 and 48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 
William Ennis, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



2429 Kenvil Circle



Ordinance Number 2864 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2864 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by  dated March 13, 2019, that the 

property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with 

a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City, has been 

filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2429 Kenvil Circle 

Lot 36, Resurvey of Lots 18, 19, 20, 33, 34, 46, 47 and 48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 
William Ennis, Owner 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of August, 2019. 



Ordinance Number 2864 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2864 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 12th day of August, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



2429 Kenvil Circle


	2019_0722CC_A
	2019_0708CC_M
	Ordinance 2856
	Ordinance 2857
	Ordinance 2858
	Resolution 5166
	Ordinance 2859
	Resolution 5172
	Resolution 5174
	Resolution 5173
	Resolution 5167
	Ordinance 2860
	Resolution 5168
	Ordinance 2861
	Resolution 5169
	Ordinance 2862
	Resolution 5170
	Ordinance 2863
	Resolution 5171
	Ordinance 2864



